
BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 
 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 
by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney General  ) 
of the State of Illinois,    ) 
       ) 
   Complainant,   ) 
       ) 
  v.     ) PCB No.  23 -   
       ) (Enforcement - Water) 
VILLAGE OF BROADWELL,    ) 
an Illinois municipal corporation,   ) 
       ) 
   Respondent.   ) 
 
 NOTICE OF FILING 
 
To: See attached service list (Via Electronic Filing) 
   
 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that I have today filed with the Office of the Clerk of the Illinois 
Pollution Control Board by electronic filing the following Complaint, Stipulation and Proposal for 
Settlement, Motion for Relief from Hearing Requirement and Certificate of Service, a copy of which is 
attached and hereby served upon you.  You may be required to answer the charges of the Complaint at a 
hearing before the Board, at a date set by the Board. 
 

Failure to file an answer to this complaint within 60 days may have severe consequences. Failure 
to answer will mean that all allegations in the complaint will be taken as if admitted for purposes of this 
proceeding. If you have any questions about this procedure, you should contact the hearing officer assigned 
to this proceeding, the clerk's office, or an attorney. 
 
NOTIFICATION - YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that financing may be available through the Illinois 
Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/1, et seq.] to correct the alleged violations. 
 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 
KWAME RAOUL, ATTORNEY GENERAL 

 
MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief 
Environmental Enforcement/Asbestos   

 Litigation Division 
 

BY:  s/Bridget I. Flynn   
Bridget I. Flynn                                                                                           
Environmental Bureau 

                Assistant Attorney General 
               500 South Second Street 
               Springfield, Illinois 62701 
               217/782-9033 
               Bridget.Flynn@ilag.gov 
Dated: December 19, 2022                       ARDC No. 6332314 
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Service List 
 

For the Respondent 
 
Michael T. Fleshman 
Woods and Bates, PC 
306 Clinton Street 
Lincoln, IL 62656 
(via certified mail) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Electronic Filing: Received, Clerk's Office 12/19/2022 **PCB 2023-080**



1 
 

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 
 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,  ) 
by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney General  ) 
of the State of Illinois,     ) 
       ) 
   Complainant,   ) 
       ) 
  v.     ) PCB No.  22  
       ) (Enforcement - Water) 
VILLAGE OF BROADWELL,    ) 
an Illinois municipal corporation,   ) 
       ) 
   Respondent.   ) 
 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney 

General of the State of Illinois, complains of Respondent, VILLAGE OF BROADWELL, an 

Illinois municipal corporation, as follows: 

COUNT I 
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH NPDES PERMIT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. This Count is brought on behalf of the People of the State of Illinois, by Kwame 

Raoul, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, on his own motion and at the request of the Illino is 

Environmental Protection Agency (“Illinois EPA”).  

2. Illinois EPA is an administrative agency of the State of Illinois, created pursuant to 

Section 4 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/4 (2020), and is charged, inter alia, with the duty of enforcing 

the Act. 

3. The Illinois Pollution Control Board (“Board”) is an independent board created by 

the Illinois General Assembly in Section 5 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/5 (2020), and charged, inter 

alia, with the duty of promulgating standards and regulations under the Act. 
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4. Respondent, VILLAGE OF BROADWELL, (“Respondent”) is an Illino is 

municipal corporation, located in Logan County, duly organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Illinois, with a population of approximately 145 residents. 

5. Respondent owns and operates a public water supply facility (“Facility”) located 

between Prairie Street and Highway County 12 in Broadwell, Illinois that is used to treat water 

before the water is distributed to the Village’s residents. 

6. On June 16, 2017, Illinois EPA reissued National Pollutant Discharge Elimina t ion 

System General Permit No. ILG6640014 (“NPDES General Permit”) to Respondent covering 

discharges of effluent from the Facility. 

7. Effluent treated at the Facility is discharged into the Lake Fork of Salt Creek 

through Outfall 001.  

8. At all times relevant to this Complaint, the NPDES General Permit required 

Respondent to monitor discharges from the Facility for specified parameters and to submit monthly 

Discharge Monitoring Reports detailing the results to Illinois EPA. 

9. Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (2020), provides as follows: 

No person shall:  

(f)  Cause, threaten or allow the discharge of any contaminant into the 
waters of the State, as defined herein, including but not limited to, 
waters to any sewage works, or into any well or from any point 
source within the State, without an NPDES permit for point source 
discharges issued by the Agency under Section 39(b) of this Act, or 
in violation of any term or condition imposed by such permit, or in 
violation of any NPDES permit filing requirement established under 
Section 39(b), or in violation of any regulations adopted by the 
Board or of any order adopted by the Board with respect to the 
NPDES program. 

 
10. Section 3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2020), provides the following 

definition: 
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“Person” is any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, 
limited liability company, corporation, association, joint stock company, 
trust, estate, political subdivision, state agency, or any other legal entity, or 
their legal representative, agency or assigns. 
 

11. Respondent, a political subdivision, is a “person” as that term is defined by Section 

3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2020). 

12. Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2020), provides the following 

definition: 

“Contaminant” is any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or any form 
of energy, from whatever source. 

 
13. Wastewater effluent discharged by Respondent’s Facility to the Lake Fork of Salt 

Creek is a “contaminant” as that term is defined by Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 

(2020). 

14. Section 3.550 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.550 (2020), provides the following 

definition: 

“Waters” means all accumulations of water, surface and underground, 
natural, and artificial, public and private, or parts thereof, which are wholly 
or partially within, flow through, or border upon this State. 

 
15. The Lake Fork of Salt Creek is “waters” as that term is defined by Section 3.550 of 

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.550 (2020). 

16. Section 301.240 of the Board’s Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

301.240, provides as follows: 

“CWA” means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, (33 
U.S.C. 1251 et seq., Public Law 92-500 enacted by Congress October 18, 
1972 as amended by the “Clean Water Act”, Public Law 95-217, enacted 
December 12, 1977, as amended.) 

 
17. Section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14), provides the following 

definition: 
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The term “point source” means any discernible, confined and discrete 
conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, 
conduit, well, discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal 
feeding operation, or vessel or other floating craft, from which pollutants 
are or may be discharged. This term does not include agricultural storm 
water discharges and return flows from irrigated agriculture. 
 

18. Outfall 001, where Respondent’s Facility discharges wastewater effluent into the 

Lake Fork of Salt Creek, is a “point source” as that term is defined by Section 502(14) of the CWA, 

33 U.S.C § 1362(14). 

19. Section 305.102(b) of the Board’s Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

305.102(b), provides as follows: 

(b) Every holder of a NPDES permit is required to comply with the 
monitoring, sampling, recording and reporting requirements set 
forth in the permit and this Chapter.   

 
20. Section 309.102(a) of the Board’s Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

309.102(a), provides as follows: 

(a) Except as in compliance with the provisions of the Act, Board 
regulations, and the CWA, and the provisions and conditions of the 
NPDES permit issued to the discharger, the discharge of any 
contaminant or pollutant by any person into the waters of the State 
from a point source or into a well shall be unlawful. 
 

21. Special Condition 5 of the NPDES General Permit provides, in pertinent part, as 

follows:  

The Permittee shall record monitoring results on Discharge Monitoring 
Report (DMR) electronic Forms using one such form each outfall each 
month.  

*** 
The completed Discharge Monitoring Report forms shall be submitted to 
IEPA no later than the 25th day of the following month, unless otherwise 
specified by the permitting authority. 
 

22. Beginning no later than March 2018, Respondent has failed to timely submit to 

Illinois EPA all Discharge Monitoring Reports required by its NPDES General Permit.  
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23. The following table (“Table 1”) lists the Discharge Monitoring Reports that 

Respondent has failed to timely submit to Illinois EPA: 

Outfall/Monitoring 
Point 

Monitoring 
Period 
End Date 

ILG640014-001 03/31/2019 

ILG640014-001 08/31/2019 

ILG640014-001 09/30/2019 

ILG640014-001 10/31/2019 

ILG640014-001 11/30/2019 

ILG640014-001 12/31/2019 

ILG640014-001 01/31/2020 

ILG640014-001 02/29/2020 

ILG640014-001 02/29/2020 

ILG640014-001 03/31/2020 

ILG640014-001 04/30/2020 

ILG640014-001 05/31/2020 

ILG640014-001 06/30/2020 

ILG640014-001 07/31/2020 

ILG640014-001 08/31/2020 

ILG640014-001 09/30/2020 

ILG640014-001 10/31/2020 

ILG640014-001 11/30/2020 

ILG640014-001 12/31/2020 
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ILG640014-001 03/31/2021 

ILG640014-001 04/30/2021 

ILG640014-001 05/31/2021 

ILG640014-001 06/30/2021 

ILG640014-001 07/31/2021 

 
24. In November 2020, Respondent submitted the missing Discharge Monitoring 

Reports from March 2019 through November 2020; in February 2021, Respondent submitted the 

late Discharge Monitoring Report from December 2020; and in August 2021, Respondent 

submitted the late Discharge Monitoring Reports from March 2021 through July 2021. 

25. By discharging effluent into Lake Fork of Salt Creek from its Facility without 

timely submitting Discharge Monitoring Reports, Respondent has violated Section 12(f) of the 

Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (2020); Special Condition 5 of the NPDES General Permit; and Sections 

305.102(b) and 309.102(a) of the Board’s Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

305.102(b) and 309.102(a). 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter an order in favor of the Complainant and against the Respondent, 

VILLAGE OF BROADWELL, on Count I: 

A. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time Respondent will be required to 

answer the allegations herein;  

B. Finding that Respondent violated the Act and Board regulations as alleged herein;  

C. Ordering Respondent to cease and desist from any further violations of the Act and 

Board regulations;  
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D. Assessing against Respondent a civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) for each day of violation of Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) 2020, and 

Special Permit Condition 5 of the NPDES General Permit,  pursuant to Section 42(b)(1) of the 

Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(b)(1) (2020);  

E. Ordering Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act, 415 

ILCS 5/42(f) (2020), including any attorney, expert witness, and consultant fees expended by the 

State in its pursuit of this action; and 

F. Granting such other relief as the Board may deem appropriate. 

COUNT II 
WATER POLLUTION 

 
1-25.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates herein by reference paragraphs 1 through 25 

of Count I as paragraphs 1 through 25 of this Count II. 

26. Section 12(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) (2020), provides as follows: 

No person shall: 

(a) Cause or threaten or allow the discharge of any contaminants into 
the environment in any State so as to cause or tend to cause water 
pollution in Illinois, either alone or in combination with matter from 
other sources, or so as to violate regulations or standards adopted by 
the Pollution Control Board under this Act. 
 

27. By causing and allowing the discharge of contaminants in violation of the Board’s 

regulations, Respondent thereby violated Section 12(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) (2020).  

PRAYER OF RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter an order in favor of the Complainant and against the Respondent, 

VILLAGE OF BROADWELL, on Count II: 
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A. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time Respondent will be required to 

answer the allegations herein;  

B. Finding that Respondent violated the Act and Board regulations as alleged herein;  

C. Ordering Respondent to cease and desist from any further violations of the Act and 

Board regulations;  

D. Assessing against Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars 

($50,000.00) for each violation of Section 12(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 12(a) (2020), and an 

additional Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day each violation continued, pursuant to 

Section 42(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(a) (2020);  

E. Ordering Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act, 415 

ILCS 5/42(f) (2020), including any attorney, expert witness, and consultant fees expended by the 

State in its pursuit of this action; and 

F. Granting such other relief as the Board may deem appropriate. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,  

     by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney General  
of the State of Illinois 
 
MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief 
Environmental Enforcement/Asbestos 
Litigation Division 

 
 

BY: /s/ Andrew Armstrong    
ANDREW B. ARMSTRONG, Chief 
Environmental Bureau/Springfield 
Assistant Attorney General  
ARDC #6282447 
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Of Counsel  
BRIDGET I. FLYNN 
Assistant Attorney General 
Environmental Bureau 
Illinois Attorney General’s Office 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, Illinois 62701 
(217) 782-9033 
Bridget.flynn@ilag.gov 
ARDC #6332314 
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("EPTF"). Payments shall be sent by first class mail and delivered to: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Fiscal Services #2 
l 021 North Grand A venue East
P.O. Box 19276
Springfield, Illinois 62702

2. The case name and case number shall appear on the face of the certified check or

money order. 

to: 

3. A copy of the certified check or money order and any transmittal letter shall be sent

Bridget Flynn 
Assistant Attorney General 
Environmental Bureau 
Illinois Attorney General's Office 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, Illinois 62701 

D. Future Compliance

1. This Stipulation in no way affects the responsibilities of the Respondent to comply

with any other federal, state or local laws or regulations, including but not limited to the Act and 

the Board Regulations. 

2. Respondent shall cease and desist from future violations of the Act and Board

Regulations that were the subject matter of the Complaint. 

3. Respondent shall ensure that all future Discharge Monitoring Reports are timely

submitted each month in compliance with the tenns and conditions of the Facility's NPDES 

Pennit. 

E. Release from Liability

In consideration of the Respondent's payment of the civil penalties required by Section

V.A, above, and its commitment to cease and desist as contained in Section V.D.2, above, and

7 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-
---

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF BROADWELL, LOGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

THIS RESOLUTION is made and adopted by the BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF BROADWELL, LOGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the VILLAGE OF BROADWELL is a municipal 

corporation located in Logan County, Illinois; and, 

WHEREAS, the VILLAGE OF BROADWELL operates a public water 

supply facility that treats water and distributes water to 

VILLAGE residents; and, 

WHEREAS, between March 2019 and August 2021 the VILLAGE 

failed to comply with certain reporting requirements within the 

Illinois Environmental Protection Act, 415 ILCS 5/1, et seq. 

(the "Act"); and, 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Attorney General is contemplating 

filing a Complaint against the VILLAGE for noncompliance with 

the Act; and, 

WHEREAS, in an effort to fully resolve any issue between 

the State of Illinois and the VILLAGE, the Attorney General's 

Office prepared a Stipulation and Proposal for Settlement, a 

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and by this 

reference made a part hereof; and, 

Page 1 of 3 

Exhibit A
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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

 
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 
by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney   ) 
General of the State of Illinois,   ) 

) 
Complainant,   ) 

) 
v.      ) PCB No.   

) (Enforcement – Water) 
VILLAGE OF BROADWELL,   ) 
an Illinois municipal corporation,   ) 
       ) 

Respondent.   ) 
  
 MOTION FOR RELIEF FROM HEARING  
 
 NOW COMES Complainant, People of the State of Illinois, by Kwame Raoul, Attorney 

General of the State of Illinois, and requests relief from the requirement of a hearing in this 

matter. In support thereof, Complainant states as follows:  

1. Filed contemporaneously with this Motion is a Stipulation and Proposal for 

Settlement executed between Complainant and the Respondent, Village of Broadwell.  

2. The parties have reached agreement on all outstanding issues in this matter.  

3. Section 31(c)(2) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(c)(2) (2020), provides as follows:  

 (c)(2)  Notwithstanding the provisions of subdivision (1) of this subsection 
   (c), whenever a complaint has been filed on behalf of the Agency or 
   by the People of the State of Illinois, the parties may file with the  
   Board a stipulation and proposal for settlement accompanied by a  
   request for relief from the requirement of a hearing pursuant to  
   subdivision (1). Unless the Board, in its discretion, concludes that a 
   hearing will be held, the Board shall cause notice of the stipulat ion, 
   proposal and request for relief to be published and sent in the same 
   manner as is required for hearing pursuant to subdivision (1) of this 
   subsection. The notice shall include a statement that any person may 
   file a written demand for hearing within 21 days after receiving the 
   notice. If any person files a timely written demand for hearing, the  
   Board shall deny the request for relief from a hearing and shall hold 
   a hearing in accordance with the provisions of subdivision (1).  
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4. No hearing is scheduled in this matter.  

5. Complainant hereby requests relief from the requirement of a hearing pursuant to 

Section 31(c)(2) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(c)(2) (2020).  

Respectfully submitted, 
 
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,  

     by KWAME RAOUL, Attorney General  
     of the State of Illinois  
 
     MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief 
     Environmental Enforcement/Asbestos 
     Litigation Division  

 
 
BY: /s/ Bridget I. Flynn_________ 
        BRIDGET I. FLYNN 
        Assistant Attorney General 
        500 South Second Street 
        Springfield, Illinois 62706 
        (217) 782-9033 
        Bridget.flynn@ilag.gov  
 

Dated: December 19, 2022  
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 I, Bridget Flynn, an Assistant Attorney General, certify that on the 19th day of December, 

2022, I caused to be served the  Notice of Filing, Complaint, Stipulation and Proposal for 

Settlement, and Motion for Relief from Hearing Requirements by certified mail to: 

Michael T. Fleshman 
Woods and Bates, PC 
306 Clinton Street 
Lincoln, IL 62656 

 
        
BY:  s/Bridget I. Flynn   

Bridget I. Flynn  
Assistant Attorney General                                                                                               
Environmental Bureau 

               Office of the Illinois Attorney General  
              500 South Second Street 
              Springfield, Illinois 62701 
              217-782-9033 
              Bridget.Flynn@ilag.gov 
               ARDC No. 6332314 
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